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OPTIONIS LIMITED - INTRODUCTION
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

As | set out in my report last year, my key area of focus since joining the Optionis group on 8 July 2019 has been to
develop a long-term strategic plan and vision for the group.

We commenced a process in December 2019 to create a vision as to how we would like the Optionis group to look
and to feel over the coming years. We reached out to every single person in the Optionis group in a series of
structured workshops to make sure we hear what our people think and ran a series of workshops with the executive
and senior management team into which we have fed the key messages from the business. The outputs from all of
this work were collated, finalised and presented at our “V festival” on 12 May 2020 where we presented back to all
of our employees the purpose, vision and values for the future of our business. Alongside developing the long term
purpose vision and values we have also made progress in a number of specific strategic areas which are set out
below.

Executive team

As part of our strategic review we have considered the balance and skills within the group’s executive and senior
management team to identify any gaps. As a result we have made a number of key executive team appointments in
the past year with Willlam Catterick being promoted to Chief financial officer, Karen Pay joining as Chief people
officer, Neal Preece joining as Chief digital officer, Tony Killeen joining as Chief operating officer, Jonathan James
joining as Chief information officer and most recently Greetje Brosens joinirig as Chief sales officer. These
appointments build and enhance on the existing skill sets in the business as well as bringing substantial experience
of delivering transformational strategic change and driving growth.

The executive team and | are excited to take on the challenge of driving the group’s future growth, while building on
the group’s history and heritage as the leading market provider of contractor solutions.

Business review
In many respects the performance of the business was a story of two “halves” pre and post Covid 19.

The period preceding the pandemic was arguably the strongest the group has performed as the work undertaken to
build and strengthen our sales and operational teams began to deliver growth. As a result in the 5 month period to
31 March 2020 we achieved net growth in our client base, our joiners were up.23% year on year and were
substantially ahead of any previous year, and our service linked leavers in our accountancy business were 24% lower
than the equivalent period in any previous year. These successes did not happen overnight and were the result of a
huge amount of hard work that began in the second half of the prior year.

While we must acknowledge the positive impact the {ultimately deferred) IR35 reforms had on the Umbrella market,
it Is easy to forget, given the subsequent pandemic, the period was also affected by: an election in December 2019
where all parties referenced potentially reviewing the IR35 reforms; and, Brexit uncertainty, both of which created
economic and market uncertainty that slowed momentum in the first quarter of the year. Against that backdrop the
record- breaking performance and growth was extremely pleasing and expected to increase as we headed towards
the second half of the year. '

However, it is safe to say that 2020 will likely always be remembered for the impact the Covid-19 pandemic had on
all of our lives and the UK and global economy. When the impact of the pandemic first became apparent our key
priorities were our employees’ well-being and servicing our dients effectively. As lockdown restrictions were
imposed, the business was able to manage a transfer to a remote working operating mode! rapidly, ensuring that
our employees could be kept as safe as possible and maintaining a full service for our clients. While a substantial
majority of our people were able to move to remote working in order to ensure the environment was as safe as
possible for the small minority of roles that could not be completed remotely we conducted a full health and safety
review and updated our office spaces and working practices to refiect the recommendations.



OPTIONIS LIMITED — INTRODUCTION (continued)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT (continued)

Business review (continued)

The impact the pandemic had on the business was most significant during the first lockdown during which we saw a
substantial reduction in recruitment activity with joiners falling 67% in quarter 3 (May to July) which was also down
by 52% year on year. However, following the end of the lockdown we have seen a steady consistent recovery in our
Joiners performance, which had recovered to be consistent with the prior year by the end of the financial year. it {s
even more pleasing to report that our performance post year end is now running ahead of pre-pandemic levels
despite the second and third national lockdowns affecting the period. This performance is a testament to the
development and improvements made to the business over the past 18 months and the consistently excellent
service delivered by our people both before and after the Impact of the pandemic.

On behalf of the board, 1 would like to thank all of our people for their efforts during this period and in particular the
individuals who swiftly delivered our remote working solution and the key employees that remained office-based to
continue essential functions.

Strategic and proposition developments

A key area of focus for us in the past year has been to review our proposition to ensure it continues to meet our
dients and suppliers needs in an evolving market. This review has involved us both working with a consultancy firm
to review our historic performance, market share and evolution and future opportunities and undertaking an
internal review of our internal teams and surveying our customers to understand their evolving needs.

As a result of this work, we have developed and launched the following enhancements to our proposition: our
Construction Industry Scheme (“CIS”) product; our Professional Employer Organisation (“PEO”) model; our sole
trader offering, and, most recently, our updated core Accountancy proposition that incorporates a seamless dual
option to operate through a limited company or Umbrella solution depending on whether an assignment is
determined inside or outside IR35. Taken together these launches substantially enhance the proportion of the agile
workforce we can support and ensure our offering is evolving to deliver what is needed in a changing market.

Another key opportunity identified has been the development of our Digital presence. Following the appointment
of Neal Preece as our Chief digital officer we have undertaken a complete review of the overall marketing and digital
functions identifying gaps in our skills and knowledge and making several appointments to build this function. We
have already started to see benefits in our online presence in terms of both generation of leads and joiners but, as
importantly, enhancing our communication streams to our clients and suppliers enabling us to build greater
engagement with both.

Overall, the past year has seen a gi'eat step forward in the development of the business and as we look to the future
there remains substantial opportunity to further develop and grow our business to deliver our vision.

Group performance

As outlined above the group has experienced a challenging year against a background of the political uncertainty
arising from the election and Brexit in the first quarter of the year and the subsequent impact of the Covid-19
pandemic. Against this backdrop the group has seen gross income increase by 33.4% to £435.9m (2019: £326.7m),
net fee Income (defined as “Revenue less costs of employee contractors”) decrease by 10.3% to £41.9m (2019:
£46.7m), adjusted EBITDA (defined as “Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, loss on disposal and
exceptional expenses”) decreasing 9.9% to £16.4m (2019: £18.2m) and adjusted EBITDA margin (calculated as
adjusted EBITDA divided by net fee income) increased slightly to 39.1% (2019: 39.0%).

. o —— —— ———— —— — —— &



OPTIONIS LIMITED ~ INTRODUCTION {continued)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT (continutd)
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the greatest asset of the business and with whom | believe we will be well placed to excel In the future.

26 February 2021




OPTIONIS LIMITED - STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Optionis is the market-leading professional services provider to contractors, specialising in accountancy, tax and
umbretla employment solutions. We have ten offices and over 500 internal employees and over 7,000 operating
contractors, across the UK, with our Headquarters in Warrington. Each of the brands that make up the Optionis
family deliver excellent levels of client service, and we are always looking for opportunities to enhance this and
further improve our clients’ experience.

Our vision
Liberating and connecting the agile workforce community through:

e market leading propositions and solutions;
e unrivalled service and expertise; and
e [nnovative technology.

Our values
We deliver this vision by upholding our values which are:

e We are one Team — We cannot be at our best without the support of a wider team. We know that each of
us plays a vital part in delivering amazing service-to each other and to our customers and we have fun along
the way.

e We thrive when we are at our best - We take pride in offering the best advice, leading the market, and
achieving excellence in ali that we do. We believe in ourselves.

e We're always learning — To be the best we keep learning, growing and evolving our knowledge, our
processes and our ways of working. We are brave In pushing boundaries whiist remaining compliant.

e  We lead by example — Our character is as important as our technical expertise. Striving for excellence never
means compromising on our respect for others, integrity in decision-making or risking the trust our
customers have in us. As an employer of choice, how we work is as important as the results we deliver.

Not only are we dedicated to encouraging our employees to progress with us through our investment in training and
development, but we ensure excellent service for our clients and provide them the tools they need.

Our business model and brands

Optionis Is built on a foundation of delivering fixed fee, limited company accountancy, tax and employment services
to contractors and freelancers through our award-winning brands. The mix of brands delivering our services offers
a full range of services to the contractor and small business market via multiple sales channels and price points.

¢ clearsiaybusiness ﬁl’St c‘l’gg’“"“" "
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)
STRATEGIC OBIECTIVES AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1. Growing our business
Our aim is to build high-quality revenues that both deliver growth in our profitability and support our ongoing
investment into our business to ensure we continue to deliver a market leading service to our clients.

Key Initiatives: Progress in 2020:
e Investing in opportunities that support e Continuation of a strategic review of the business
organic and inorganic growth. to develop and launch our new long-term vision,
e investing in our people to ensure they have e Development and launch of our new CIS, PEO and
the skills required to continue to deliver sole trader offerings.
excellent service. e Ongolng development of 2 new Umbrella system
e Investing in our [T infrastructure to improve to ensure we provide our contractor employees
our service delivery and efficiency. and our agency partners a simple to use,
o Promoting ongoing cost discipline to transparent, market leading platform.

preserve our market leading margin.

Key performance indicators . Variance

Net fee income £m 4.9 46.7 (10.3%)
Adjusted EBITDA £m 164 18.2 {9.9%)
LAdjusted EBITDA margin 39.1% 39.0% 0.1%

A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA has been provided in Note 4. Net fee income reduction in the year Is a result
of decreasing accountancy dients as a result of IR35 changes and the ongolng COVID-19 pandemic. Reduction in
adjusted EBITDA is wholly linked to the reduction in net fee income, with adjusted EBITDA margin inine with the
previous period.

2. Oelivering a quality service

Our aim is to provide our clients with a market leading quality of service to ensure we maintain our brand reputation
and competitive position.

Key performance Indicators 2020 2019 Variance

Number of clients  Accountancy 18,783 23,594 (20.4%)
Umbrella 7,558 6,593 14.6%
Tax 1,763 2,485 {29.1%)
Churn Accountancy ’ 25.7% 20.4% (5.3%)
Umbrelia 135.29% 126.4% (8.8%)
ARPU (£) Accountancy 1,362 1,445 {5.79%)
Umbrella 1,183 1,207 (2.0%6)
Tax ) 355 338 5.0%

ARPU is defined as Average Revenue per Unit, it is calculated by dividing the recurring revenue in the period by the
number of active clients.

The changes in IR35 leglslation have had 3 significant impact on the group’s operational KPis. The legislative changes
have contributed to increases in Umbrella client numbers and, conversely, they have contributed to increases in
accountancy churn and decreases (n accountancy client numbers. The COVID-19 pandemic also had a detrimental
impact on dient numbers with fewer interim opportunities available for the group’s dlients. The legislative changes
have also impacted the accountancy ARPU, with increased client numbers ceasing to trade and moving their Limited
Companies into dormant status.

. - B . — - - - e m—— N L T et
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OPTIONIS LIMITED ~ STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (¢ontinued)
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)

3. Developing our people

Our ability to grow our business and deliver a quality service is dependent on the ability and commitment of our

people. We are committed to rewarding our staff in line with business objectives and providing them with an
interesting, stimulating career in a fun environment.

Key Initiatives: Progress In 2020:
e Attract and retain top quality people with a o [nvestment in our sales team to Improve the
strong cultural fit. team structure and engaging with the team to
e Enhance and develop our training and develop an improved reward structure.
development opportunities. e Recruitment of a Chief people officer.
e Develop and improve  employee e Review of our people proposition and
engagement. development of our new people hub.

o Launch of new values following on from the
group wide engagement sessions.

e Further development of our on-site training and
apprenticeship provision.

Key performance indicators Variance
Average employee Operations 378 430 (12.1%5)
numbers
Administrative 174 174 0.0%
. Contractors 7,576 6,536 15.9%
Attrition Operations 37.2% 35.8% 1.4%
Administrative 324% 44.9% {12.5%) |

The reduction in operations employee numbers is linked to the decreasing accountancy client base as a result of
IR3S legislative changes and the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. In turn, the IR35 legislative changes have partially
driven the increased contractor employee number.

Operations attrition Is broadly consistent year on year. The reduced attrition, within administration is linked to
increased employee engagement activities and development opportunities.



OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The board promotes the success of the group for the benefit of a broad range of stakeholders that we recognise are
materlal to the long-term future success of our business. We consider the impact on our stakeholders throughout
all our discussions and decisions. Llke any business, we are sometimes required to take decisions that adversely
affect one or more of these groups and, in such cases, we always look to ensure that those impacted are treated
fairly. We have detailed below how the board have ensured effective engagement with our key stakeholders during

the year.

Why they are important to our business:

How we engage to both consider thelr interests and needs
and update them:

- Clients

Our clients are the central focus of our business. The
group’s ongoing success Is built upon an abliity to
understand clients’ needs and respond with
solutions.

evolve and to provide services and products that
meet their goals and bulld their future prosperity.

This allows us to anticipate how these needs will |

We engage with our dients through a variety of
channels including:

Periodic surveys to understand their needs, current

.challenges and concerns to ensure we evolve the

business and its solutions to meet their needs.
Engagement of a strategy consulting firm who have
undertaken surveys of our clients and the wider agile
workforce market to hightight how our offering should
evolve to meet their needs.

Regular webinars and podcasts to support and engage
with our clients on changes affecting our industry.
Publishing a CEO blog in the current year to keep our
umbrella base up to date with the latest guidance and
policy in relation to the Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme.




OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)

People

Our people are our biggest asset and are central
to the ongoing success of the group.

Our people strategy aims to develop an agile
workforce as we continue to attract, retain, develop
and motivate the right people for our current and
future business needs.

We engage with our people through the following activities:

Bi-annual employee opinion survey.

Ensuring every member of staff was involved in the
development of our new vision and values with
engagement sessions held by the executive and senior
management team in every office.

e Our visions and values launch sessions — “V festival”
{online due to Covid-19) - where the executive team
fed back the output from the engagement sessions.
Regular management briefings.

e Our monthly internal online magazine (“the
Optimist”).

e Presentations by the executive team to discuss
performance and the firm’s new vision, values and
strategic plan.

Additionally, in the current year and the unprecedented
times we have all faced, the Board have ensured that the
health, welibeing and safety of our employees is the highest
priority. Consequently, we ensured that as many employees
as possible who could work from home have done so. Where
this was impractical either due to the nature of the role, or
our employees circumstances, significant changes to work
practices have been implemented to ensure all our

employees can work in a safe environment and ensure social

distancing was adhered to at all times.

Shareholders and banking partners

We rely on the support and engagement of our
shareholders and banking partners to deliver our
strategic objectives and grow the business.

Our shareholders are supportive of the long-term
strategic approach and vision we take in the
management of our business.

We engage with our shareholders through the

following actlvities:

e Yo provide full visibility, two representatives of our
majority shareholder meet monthly with the executive
and non-executive directors and the executive
management team.

e On an at least monthly basis, meetings are held
independently between our majority shareholder’s
representatives and our Chairman and CEO
respectively.

e  Executive remuneration is agreed by the remuneration
committee. To ensure the remuneration is aligned
with shareholders needs and expectations the
proposed remuneration for each director and member
of the executive management team is discussed with
our majority shareholder prior to finalisation and
approval.

e Regular meetings (at least monthly) are also held
between our banking partners and the executive
management team to ensure they are fully aware of
the business performance, position and emerging
trends.

S twm s lun L - noie .
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)

Partners and regulators

We recognise the Importance of our various partners
in delivering services to clients and ensure we have
shared values.

We seek to bulld positive relationships with our
regulators. Regulators provide key oversight of how
we run our business. ‘

We engage with our partners and regulators through
the following activities:

®

We ensure our payment terms with all suppliers are
fair and in compliance with payment practices.

We maintain ongoing relations with our key suppliers
and partners during the year in generaf and ensure we
proactively engage on specific challenges or changes |
(internally or externally driven) quickly.

We continue our work in the area of preventing
modemn slavery. Our latest Modern Slavery Statement
can be found on our website.

We hold regular meetings with all our regulators
(HMRC and other Government agencies) during
theyear and have 3 proactive and transparent
relationship with them.

Soclety and communities

We recognise the responsibility we have to wider
society and other key stakeholders. As a significant
employer for several areas where we are based, the
focal communities are keen to ensure we are
supporting and investing in local jobs, operating
safely and ethically.

We engage with sodety and the communities In which
we operate through the following activities:

We offer a wide-ranging apprenticeship scheme and
were named as a top 10 apprenticeship provider by the
government alongside among others HMRC, 8T and
the armed forces.

On an annual basis we select a charity to support. We
have raised £5k for our chosen charities in the past
year.

We made contributions of £11k to the NHS charity
during the year.

The table below shows the key events and decisions made by the Board during the year, the stakeholders they
impacted and the associated actions taken by the directors to engage with the relevant stakeholders. Events are
cansidered to be key if they are either material to the business or have a significant impact on one or more category

of stakeholder.
Key event and stakeholders affected Actlons and impact
Bank loan amendments e A proposal was made to the lenders to revise the

Affecting - Lenders and shareholders

bank covenant tests and these were agreed and
sighed in November 2019. We have met all
covenant tests during the year.

In the March 2020 agreement, a proposal was
made to defer an amortisation payment until
October 2020 given the uncertainty arising from
the lockdown announced by the government. This
was agreed and the deferred payment, and a
further one that was due at the same time was
made in full in October 2020.

10




OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 {continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)

1 Restructuring and furlough
| Affecting - Erﬁployees

The Executive and senior management of the
teams affected worked in consulitation with HR to
agree the size, scope and approach of the proposed
restructuring.

The restructuring included the closure of a small
number of offices.

Legal advice was taken where needed to ensure all
laws and regulations set by HMRC were met and
that we had documented the advice appropriately.
Affected employees were given notice of
redundancy and given the opportunity to raise any
questions regarding the process.

Affected employees were informed and agreed to
be furloughed and were given opportunity to raise
any questions regarding the process.

We communicate to all employees on a weekly
basis regarding the furlough of employees and the
restructuring process.

11




OPTIONIS LIMITED - STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The purpose of risk management is to Identify, assess and to mitigate and manage those risks that are inherent in
the group’s business activities, in fine with the board’s strategic objectives and risk appetite. Effective risk
management Is therefore key to success in delivering our strategic objectives.

Risk management framework

The board has adopted a new risk management framework during the period which sets out how the group manages
its principal risks.

1. Identify risk — The board has overall responsibility for monitoring the group’s systems of internal control, for
identification of risk and for taking appropriate action to prevent, mitigate and manage those risks.

2. Assessing risk — A detailed schedule of risks is presented to the board at each relevant board meeting. The board
considers the risks presented and whether they are within the group’s risk appetite.

3. Mitigating risk — The board seeks to ensure that the group’s activities do not expose it to significant risk,. Where
a risk falls outside the group’s risk appetite the group looks to undertake actions to reduce and mitigate risks.

4. Updating the risk register - The risk register is reviewed at each Audit Committee meeting. The board meets at
least 10 times per year and formally discusses, documents and updates the principal risks of the group at least
once per year.

S. Reviewing and evaluating risks — The board and the senior management team are responsibfe for reviewing
and evaluating risk on an on-going basis. The senior management team will include updates to the risk register
as a standing agenda item at its monthly meeting and formally review the risk register to re-evaluate and
document new and existing risks twice a year. )

We have used ratings of very high, high, medium and low in our risk assessment. We have classified as very high risk
items which have the potential to impact the delivery of strategic objectives and very significantly affect shareholder
value, reputation or customer service dellvery, with high, medium and low rated items having proportionately less
impact on the group. Likelihood is similarly based on a qualitative assessment.

Principal risks

FINANCIAL RISKS

Risk Definition Impact Likelihood  Mitigating controls and actions

Uqulidity The risk that the VH Y] e Regular reforecasts are undertaken during the
group will be unable yéar and projected covenant headroom is
to-secure finance on monitored by the board.’
acceptable terms or o Three-year forecasts are produced and
be able fo meet its reviewed by the board.
existing banking e The group monitors interest rate forecasts and
‘covenants may result expasures on-a monthly basis.

n significant e Weekly meetings are held with our banking
restrictions on the partners to keep them up to date with the
ability of the groupto progress of the business and the evolving Impact
continue trading or of Covid-19 restrictions. ‘

its abifity to fund

future acquisitions

that .are part of the

group’s strategic

plans.

12



‘OPTIONIS LIMITED —~ STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Interest Rate  The risk that interest M L e The group monitars Interest rate forecasts and
rate fluctuations wifl exposures on-3 monthly basis.
result in a reductjon e The group undertakes hedging to mitigate
in the groups’ interest rate risk if and when it Is required.
-cashflowr and
profitability.
‘Covid-19 The risk that the H M e Monitaring ef client numbers and KPis to track
Pandemic economy wlil worsen financial performance.
and Impact and lead 1o e An analysis of clients and industries has been
on the. decreases In job performed to demonstrate resilience.
economy vacancies, and * Rolling forecasts to take preventative actioas to
consequently, mitigate any cash inflow reducticns.
-decreases in
cashﬂow; ]
.mmars e S
[mpech mnm@mbawm
Compeﬂtion The sisk of a loss of (v} L Regular engagement with existing and potential
market share arising 2gencies to ensure we have a diversified client
from a fallure to base.
deliver 3 quality » Regular engagement with our clicnts ta obtain
service, maintain or feedback on our service.
develop existing or- e Regular monitoring and reporting of client
new relationships. satisfaction and reasons for client leavers.
o Investment in staff training, development and
retention to ensure we continue to deliver a
high quality service.
Economicand The risk that a M H * Regular engagement with existing.and potential
market deterioration I agencles to ensure we have a diversified client
condhitions economic or market basge.
«conditions results In e Reuview of packages to:dentify opportunitles to
Increased broaden our service offering to meet our dlients
competition or a evalving needs.
reduction |n demand e Investment in training to ensure we cenfinue to
for our client's deliver a high quality, efficlent service.
services and,
indirectly, our
. services.
Regulatory The risk that changes M M e Regulatory and legal changes are monitored on
and legal to the regulatory and a Jegisiation trackér to ensure changes are
changes legal  environment adequately planned for in advance.
the group operates o Policles and precedures are updated where
In, increases in the necessary to ensure compliance.
group's compliance ¢ Traihing delivered to all staff on changes 10 any
‘costs. or reduction in service delivery compliance requirements:
the continued
viabilty -of the
group’s service
offering.

13
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEARENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

CPERATIONALRISKS . R

‘ ﬁﬁﬁ_ o '”“ T Impact kelihood itigg_g_r_wgcontrols andJactions

? The risk that an T VH M e IT infrastructure update program currently
architecture  ‘infrastructure failure being defivered.

and cyber or  Cyber-security o System access controls.in place.

security’ breach  materially o Physical security in all locations.
impacts the
-operational
capability of the
8roup.

Data.security The ‘potential ™ T » Documented policies, procedures and systems
financidl, client, in place.
operational, and e Tralining delivered to all staff on data security.
reputational  risks and the requirements under GBPR.
arising from a data e Syster access eontrolsin place. :
protestion breach or : o  Repular manitoring of any breaches recorded.
failure to remain
compliant with

| GDPR.

Compllonce  The risk that the ™M M » Documented policies and procedures In place.
group’s  complisnce e Review and monitoring contrals in place to
procedures are not ensure requirements are adhered to.
adhered to resuits in a w»  Training delivered to-all staff on service delivery
fallure to meet o6ur compliance requirements.
contractgal e Suitability and effectiveness of policies, |
arrangements for procedures and controls Is reviewad regularly.

increased levels of
employee errors that
lead 16 losses arising
from additional claims

from clients.

People Theriskthatafallureto M ™ ¢ Competitive femuneration and  benefits
récrult and retain key package.
staff and managers on e Remuneration committee responsible for
competitive  salaries approving all senlor management salary
impacts ‘the group’s Increases.
operational e Anhual engagement surveys to.provide input to
éffectiveness, service the developmént.of HR policies.
delivery to clients and « Exit Interviews conducted far all- leavers: to
profitability. aseertain reasons for leaving.

e The provisioh of regular training and
development.

14



OPTIONIS LIMITED - STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 {continued)
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Overview

Group operating results

“m

Net fee income 419 46.7 (4.8)
Adjusted EDITDA 164 182 S {1:8)
(Loss)/Profit before tax (7.1) 00 (7.1)
Tax 01 (1.0) 11
toss after tax, (7.0) {1.0) {5.0)

Net fee income for the year decreased by 10.3% to £41.9m (2019: £46.7m) while operating expenses (including both
non-exceptional and exceptional) have decreased 1.3% to £31.6m (2019: £32.0m) and when excluding depreciation,
amortisation, loss on disposal and exceptional expenses decreased 10.5% to £25.5m (2019: £28.5m).

The decrease In net fee iIncome Is primarily driven by lower client numbers due to the challenging market conditions.
Whilst churn across the group has largely decreased there has been a reduction in Joiners resulting in a lower overall
client base.

The decrease In operating costs has been affected by the transition to (FRS 16, the Impact of the adoption of the
standard is to Increase operating profit by £136k and increase adjusted EBITDA by £743k.

Adjusted EBITDA, which excludes interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, loss on disposal and exceptional
expenditure, decreased by 9.9% to £16.4m {2019: £18.2m) while adjusted EBITDA margin, calculated as adjusted
EBITDA divided by net fee income, increased to 39.1% (2019: 39.0%).

Tax

The overall effective tax rate for the year was 1.9% (2019: 100%). This is calculated as the tax gain in the financial
statements of £0.1m (2019: £1.0m), divided by LBT of £7.1m (2019: £0.0m). A full tax reconciliation is set out in note
10.

Finandal position
Intangible assets

Intangible assets arise primarily in relation to business combinations, computer software, brands and the acquisition
of customer lists. At 31 October 2020, the total carrying value of intangible assets was £135.8m (2019: £138.2m).

Customer list Intangible assets are amortised over their minimum estimated useful life of two to seven years. The
total amortisation charge for customer lists was £2.4m (2019: £2.4m),

Brand intangible assets are amortised over their minimum estimated useful life of ten years. The total amortisation
charge for brand intangible assets, including the impact of any lost relationships, was £0.2m (2019: £0.2m).

Intangible assets related to the acquisition of software licences and costs associated with the production of software
products controlled by the group are amortised over a definite useful life of three years. The total amortisation
charge for the year was £0.2m (2019: £0.2m).

Goodwill that has arisen on business combinations is not amortised but Is subject to a test for impairment on an
annual basis. No goodwill was found to be impaired in the year under review or the preceding year.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW (continued)

Borrowings

The group is financed through a combination of secured bank borrowings of £108m {2019: £120.0m) and loan notes
of £49.4m (2019: £49.4m) held at amortised cost using the effective interest method. At 31 October 2020, the total
carrying value of borrowings was £161.8m (2019: £169.4m), see note 19.

The bank borrowings are secured via a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the group and are repayable in
fuil In December 2023. The Interest rate on the loan is LIBOR, at a minimum of 0.759%, + 7% and settied quarterly.

Additionally, the group has drawn down an RCF of £4.425m during the year (2019: £nll).

The loan notes relate to £34.4m (2019: £34.4m) due to shareholders and £15.0m (2019: £15.0m) due to vendors. All
-loan notes are repayable in full in September 2022. The interest rate on the loan notes is fixed at 10%4. Interest is still
being accrued on the loan notes. Interest on £6.6m (2019: £6.6m) of the Loan Notes due to management would
cease to become payable If those managers resigned their employment from the group.

Cash flow and capital expenditure

fm 2020 2019 Variance
Nat cash genasatad from operating 14.3 182 , {(3.9)
activities pre-working capital .

movements and tax .

Movement in working capital 321 02 : - 320
Tax paid (1.3) 10.9) {0:4)
Net cash generated from operating 45.1 17.4 ' ’ 2797
actlvities

Net eash used In investing activities {0.6) {0.9) 03
Net cash used in financing activities (16.1) (15.2) (0.9)
Net movement in cash and cash 28.4 13 271
equivalems

Cash and eash equivalents brought 19.0 17.7 13
forward

Cash and cash equivalents carred a7.4 19.0 284
forward

The increase In working capital is driven by an increased VAT balance, as a result of the deferral scheme offered by
HMRC, in addition to increased volumes of contractor employees in the umbrella segment driving larger tax and
soclal security payables, in addition to increased trade recelvables.

Net cash used in financing activities of £16.1m (2019: £15.2m) is in relation to interest paid on the group’s
borrowings and loan repayments of £12m.

Government Support

The group has used some of the financial support schemes set up by the Government in order to assist during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The group has received furlough income of £4,165k via the CIRS (Coranavirus Job Retention
Scheme) and it has also deferred VAT payments that were due between 20 March 2020 and 20 June 2020. The VAT
will be repald in full by 31 March 2022 at the .

16

- —— -



OPTIONIS LIMITED - STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW (continued)

Going concern

The group and company regularly review market and financial forecasts and has reviewed its trading prospects in its
key markets. As a result, it believes its trading performance will demonstrate improvement in the coming years, and
that liquidity will remain strong. Therefore, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group and company
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The board has reviewed the latest forecasts of the group and considered the obligations of the group's financing
arrangements, the group continues to operate well within its existing facilities and there are no concerns at this time
In relation to the group’s abllity to meet its quarterly covenants. Given the continued strong liquidity of the group,
the board has concluded that a going concern basis of preparation of its consolidated financial statements Is
appropriate.

These forecasts have been prepared taking account of the current and potential impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic
and the IR35 reforms may have on the recruitment market volatility. As part of this review the directors’ considered
specific assumptions and risks to achieving forecast outcomes and have considered liquidity as well as the ability to
operate within the group's current financing facilities which are subject to covenant tests. The forecasts also took
into account the substantial growth being seen during early 2021 in the Umbreila CGU which directly impacts both
profitability but also the groups liquidity position favourably. During the current year the group met all covenant
tests and based on the forecast will do so throughout the review period through to February 2022.

The group has also undertake reverse stress tests of the forecasts assessing what deviation from budget would be
required In both clients numbers and Umbrella working capital at each test date for the group to breach its covenants
tests. Based on the current performance and trends in the busines it would require a significant deviation for there
to be a breach.

Effect of changes in accounting standards

IFRS 16 became effective for the year ended 31 October 2020, the impact of adopting this standard is an increase in
operating proflt for the year of £136k and an increase in adjusted EBITDA of £743k.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCT OBEk 2020 (continued)
- PEOPLE .

At Optionis, we are dedicated to attracting and nurturing the best talent, from those first steps right through to fong-
term career goals. We take great pride in the continued development and training opportunities we offer, and we
firmly believe that our greatest strength is in our people. We offer training from the ground up — whether you’re
fresh out of school or you’re a senlor manager, we’ve got something to teach you.

To deliver this we have an annual training budget of £1.5m, a dedicated Learning and Development team, an on-site
training provider and an in-house training facility. As well as our ACCA platinum trainee development and AAT
accountancy qualifications, we also offer over 17 other courses, such as an Institute of Leadership Management
{ILM) course, to help our employees progress into managerial roles. Other courses include Project Management and
Digital Marketing ~ you can even sign up for Spanish lessons. '

Graduates and apprentices

Optlonis belleves in pfovlding opportunities to people at all points in ihe education spectr'um and that graduates
and apprentices are our future leaders, and we are proud to invest in and nurture talent.

Diversity and inclusion : .

Diversity and inclusion are important focus areas for Optionis. As an equal opportunities employer, we ensure that
all job applicants and employees are treated fairly and on merit regardless of race, sex, marital/civil partnership
status, age, disability, religious belief, pregnancy, maternity, gender reassignment or sexual orientation. We believe
that having a diverse and inclusive workforce leads to more innovation and opportunities, access to 3 wider talent
pool and, ultimately, enables us to deliver excellent client service and stronger business performance.

We published our 2019 Gender Pay report as required under the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information)
Regulations 2017 which is available on our website (www.optionis.co.uk). Our report highlights that we employ very
slightly more men (52%) than women (48%) and there is a small difference of 3% between the mean (average) pay
for men and women.

However, it is important to note that this figure Is not based on individual roles; a man and woman performing the
same role at Optionis are paid equally. All new starters are recruited under the same salary structure for their role
and their earnings ability depends on their performance and career progression. All employees are afforded the
same opportunities, and internal roles are offered as a result of fair and consistent recruitment processes. The
median (middie vaiue) of women’s pay is 6% higher than that of men.

This can be explained by the fact that men’s earnings across the business are very varied, for exampie men make up
$2% of our highest earning bracket (upper quartile) and 64% of our lowest earning bracket {lower quartile). However,
the vast majority of women fall into our middle earning brackets, making up 55% of our upper middle quartile and
52% of our lower middle quartile. Bonuses are awarded according to job roles and performance targets being met.
Targets are set fairly across the group to ensure equal earnings opportunity. The same proportion of men and women
(45%) earned a bonus In this period.

v

Human rights and modern slavery

We recognise that modern slavery is a crime and a violation of fundamental human rights. We have a zero-tolerance
approach to modern slavery, and we are absolutely committed to acting ethically and with integrity In all our
business dealings and relationships and to implementing and enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure
modern slavery is not taking place anywhere in our own business or in any of our supply chains. In accordance with
the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the group has published our modern slavery and human trafficking statement on our

website: www.optionis.co.uk.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Optionls has o strong sense of corporate and social reiponsibifity and aims to give back to the communities in which
we work anid to our peogle. To achieve this, we look for ways where we can make 8 positive influence in the
communities where we work and to provide & professional, supportive and fun workplacz for our teams, enabling
us 80 difiver the best possidle service to our dlients.

Community

At Optionis we look to give back t0 our communities by undestaking regular fundratsing ectivities to support our
chosen corporate charities, This year, our charity, voted for by our steff, is The Semaritans,

Tax strategy

Our tax strategy, which can be found on our website, is focused on ensuring that taxes (end tax risks) are managed
ummmmwmmmmmnmwumsw
objéctives. Whils we are mindful to ensure that the groug’s tax affsirs are carried out in the most tax efficient
mannes, we do not enter Into antificis) arrangements in order t0 avold taxation nor do we utfllie companies

incorparated in “tax havens” as a meens of reducing the groug’s tax Rebitities. We have an open, coliaborative and

professional working relationship with NMRC.
nnmmmbrmmmsaoawaNnmwnmmmmzﬁmmmmw

on its behatf by:

Doug Crawford WIKam ) Catterick
Chief exacutive officer Chief financisl officer
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the group, together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 October 2020.

Registered company number

The company’s registered number is 09199221.

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were:

W J Catterick

D Crawford

J S Newman

I Ahmed (Resigned 30 September 2020)
K Budge (Resigned 03 January 2020)

Business review and future developments
Refer to our Strategic Report for further details of the group’s business review and future developments.

Financial risk management

The group has an active and robust corporate governance programme desighed to manage strategic and tactical
risks which could impact the business. Refer to page 12, for detalils of the group’s risk management framework.

Dividends and results

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2019: £nil). Loss after taxation was £7.0m (2019: £1.0m)
for the year.

Palitical donations
No political donations were made during the year (2019: £nil).
Directors liabilities

The company has granted an indemnity to one or more of its directors against liability in respect of proceedings
brought by third parties subject to conditions set up in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying third-
party indemnity provision remains in force as at the date of approving the Directors’ report.

Employee engagement

The group engages with Employees via frequent whole business updates from the director and senior management
teams. There is a monthly group Wide newsletter which communicates both company and industry changes to all
employees. During the year, communication has largely been via virtual meetings and presentations, due to the
majority of Group employees working from home, in addition to emalls and newsletters.

Engagement workshops were held at the end of 2019, each employee had an opportunity to attend and share the
views on the business, its objective and its strategies. The feedback from these sessions was used to shape the
updated groups Vision and values that have been launched during the financial year.

Each employee receives a half-yearly appraisal to evaluate their performance against the group values, this appraisal
is linked to changes in reward and remuneration. In addition, there Is VIP reward scheme that gives awards to those
that have delivered exceptional service. This is further discussed in the Section 172 statement, page 9.

20



OPTIONIS LIMITED — DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The energy consumed by the group is in the form of fuel, electricity and gas consumed in our offices and for transport
purposes.

Greenhouse gas emissions 2020
kg 00:ze

Scope 1 Direct emissions

Transport: Group employee Journeys travelled for business purposes 19,327

Transport: Umbrella contractor Journeys travelled for business purposes 755,242

Scope 2 Indirect emissions

Grid electricity purchased for use in offices 130,574

Total Carbon emissions 905,143

Carbon emissions per £1m Revenue 2,076

To minimise our carbon emissions, employees are encouraged to communicate via technology wherever possible
and to power off all non -essential electrical items outside of office hours. The nature of the services provided means
that some face-to-face meetings are required. The opportunity for the group to reduce emissions output by the
umbrella contractors Is extremely minimal, these are out of the control of the group.

The nature of the services provided, largely office based services, means that the group has minimal impact on the
environment with low greenhouse gas emissions.

Going concern

The directors’ assessment of going concern Is set out on page 17, within the strategic report. The strategic report
also details the group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance. Overall, the group has adequate financial resources and a large, diversified client base. As a
consequence, the directors believe that the group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

Statement of directors’ responsibllities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the group financial statements In accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and company financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubilic of Ireland”, and applicable
law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group and
company for that period. in preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed for the group financial statements and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have been followed for the company financial statements, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020 (continued)

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
and company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
group and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

e so far as the directors are aware, there Is no relevant audit information of which the group and company’s
auditors are unaware; and

e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director In order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the group and company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

Independent auditor

BDO LLP have indicated their willingness to continue In office. A resolution that they be reappointed will be proposed
at the annual general meeting.

Thls regortwas approved by the board on 26 February 2021 and signed on its behalf.

Chief financial officer
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER
2020

The board recognises the importance of good corporate governance in facilitating effective, entrepreneurial and
prudent management that can support the long-term success of the group and delivery of all of its stakeholders
objectives. The group Is not quoted and therefore is not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the Code). However, this year for the first time the group is required to regard to the Wates Principles (the
Principles), which were originally published in 2018. Prior to this requirement the board had already developed, and
continues to keep under review, its own governance arrangements. In practice this has meant adopting and
reflecting elements of the Code where we consider they are appropriate for a group of our size and complexity and
now having regard to the corporate governance arrangements set out in the Principles.

Purpose and strategic leadership

The role of the board is to establish the purpose, vision and strategy for the group, to deliver shareholder value and
be responsible for the long-term success of the group. individual members of the board have equal responsibility for
the overall stewardship, management and performance of the group and for the approval of its long-term objectives
and strategic plans. The board comprises a non-executive chairman and two executive directors. The directors are
supported by the executive management team which is comprised of a further 5 senior executive leaders. All
members of the executive management team submit reports directly to the board on a monthly basis while 4 of
them also attend the monthly board meetings to present on their business area directly.

The members of the board and executive team maintain the appropriate balance of experience, independence and
knowledge of the group to enable them to discharge their respective dutles and responsibilities and to ensure that
the requirements of the business can be met. The board, with the support of the executive management team,
acknowledges its collective responsibility for ensuring the long-term success of the group by demonstrating strong
leadership, setting strategy and business models, managing performance and ensuring the necessary resources are
in place to deliver. It also holds itself accountable for looking after the needs of all its stakeholders, including
employees, shareholders and the broader community and environment.

| am fully supportive of the strategic direction being taken by the executive management team. The Strategic Report
is on pages 5 to 19 in the Financial Statements. )

Compasition of the board and executive management team

A strong feature of the board’s effectiveness in delivering the strategy is our inclusive and open style of management
and a free flow of Information between the executive directors and non-executive chairman, the executive
management team and our majority investors who have two representatives in attendance at all board meetings.
The conduct of these meetings encourage individuals to discuss matters openly and freely and to make a personal
contribution through the exercise of their personal skills and experience. Consequently, no individual or group of
individuals dominate the board’s decision making process.

Vacancies on the board and executive management team are filled following a rigorous evaluation of candidates
who possess the required balance of skills, knowledge and experience, using recruitment consultants where
appropriate. All decisions to recrult at the board or executive management team level are recommended by the
Chief executive officer to the Chairman for approval. Once approved the process for the appolntment of directors is
managed by the group’s Chief people officer.

The group recognises the importance of diversity at board and executive management level and that the group
comprises Individuals with a wide range of skills and experience from a variety of business backgrounds.

Board responsibilities
Division of responsibilities

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the role of the Chairman and that of the Chief executive officer
of the group. The primary responsibility of the Chairman is to lead and manage the board and that of the Chief
executive is to manage the business of the group.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER
2020

The Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for leading the board, setting its agenda and ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of
its role. He works closely with the Chief Executive on developing group strategy and provides general advice and
support without directly being involved in day-to-day management of delivery. He also promotes effective and
constructive dialogue and challenge between the Executive Directors, Executive Management team and the group’s
majority shareholders.

The Chief executive officer

The Chief executive officers principal responsibility is to manage the group’s business and to lead the executive
management team. He is responsible for ensuring the executive management team deliver on the agreed strategic
objectives set by the board and maintaining strong relationships with the Chairman, the board and key shareholders
and stakeholders.

Board committees

The board has delegated specific authority to the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and | chair
both committees.

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for monitoring the quality of internal controls, ensuring that the
finandal performance of the group is properly measured and reported on and reviewing reports from the group’s
auditors. The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year.

The Remuneration Committee reviews the performance of the Executive Directors and Executive Management team
and determines their terms and conditions of service, including their remuneration and the award of any equity-
based remuneration. In practice the Remuneration Committee engages with the group’s majority shareholder prior
to finalising recommendations of both the executive directors’ and executive management team’s remuneration.
This open and proactive approach ensures that there Is a clear alignment between the remuneration of directors
and executive management and our delivery of our strategy. The Committee also agrees all board and executive
management team vacancies and approves the recommended candidates to fill such vacancies as and when they
arise. The Remuneration Committee will meet at least annually and additionally as required.

Risk Management

The group’s corporate objective Is to maximise long-term shareholder value. In doing so, the directors recognise that
creating value Is a reward for taking and accepting risk. The Directors consider risk management to be crucial to the
group’s success and give a high priority to ensuring that adequate systems are in place to evaluate and limit risk
exposure.

Internal control and financial reporting

The board are responsible for the group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness across its
operations. The group’s system of internal financial control includes restrictions on payment authorisations and
execution and, where appropriate .and possible, duties are segregated. The annual budgeting, forecasting and
monthly management reporting system, which applies throughout the group, enables trends to be evaluated and
variances to be acted upon. The group board and Executive Management team receives monthly financial
Information on results and other performance data and reviews financial and performance data at each of its
monthly meetings.

Any system of internal controi, however, is designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and client outcomes. In establishing and reviewing the system of internal controls the Directors
consider the nature and extent of relevant risks, the likelihood of a loss being incurred and costs of control.
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OPTIONIS UMITED — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER
2020

Going concern

The group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance,
are set out in the strategic review. in additfon, the strategit review refers to the group’s capital position and cash
flows. )

In carvying out their duties in respect of going concern, the directors carty out a review of the group’s financial
pasition and cash flow forecasts for the foreseeable future. These are based on a comprehensive review of revenue,
expenditure and cash flows, taking into acocount specific business risks and the asrent economic environment.

The directors have reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foresecable future. For this reason, they comtinue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
fn preparing the Financlal Statements.

Stakeholder refationships and engagement

The board is keen to ensure ongoing and effective communication with all stakeholders. Further reading on
stakeholder engagement can be found in our Section 172 statement on pages 8 to 11.

The corporate govemnance report for the year ended 31 October 2020 was approved by the board on 26 February
2021 and signed on its behalf by:
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF OPTIONIS
LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Oplnion

We have audited the financial statements of Optionls Limited (“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the year ended 31 October 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Balance Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consofidated Statement of Cashflows, and the notes to the financial statements, incuding a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group
financial statements is applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 The Financiol Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

o the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 October 2020 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards; )

o the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements in the UK, including the FRC'’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Conclusions refating to going concemn
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

o the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or )

e the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Group or Parent Company'’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern;
and

e basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements

are authorised for issue
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF OPTIONIS
LIMITED (continued)

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance concluslon thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there Iis a3 material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given In the Strategic report and Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Strategic report and Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you If, In our opinion;

¢ adegquate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibiiities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have na realistic alternative but to do so.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - INDEPEN.DENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMIBERS OF OPTIONIS
LIMITED (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financiaf statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasanable assurance is 3 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decislons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council’s website at:
httjs:; [www.fre.or .uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made sofely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company
and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

.

Gary Harding (Senlor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Manchester, UK

26 February 2021
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2020

Note 2020 2019

£000 £'000

Revenue 5 435,861 326,749

Cost of employee contractors 4 7 (393,945)  (280,042)

Revenue less costs of employee contractors o 41,916 46,707

Operational employee costs 7 (12,094) (17,882}

Depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal of 6 (3,972) (3,328)

property, plant and equipment

Other operating costs - exceptional 6 (2,070) (156)

Other operating costs - non-exceptional 6 (8,418) {10,621)

Operating profit 10,362 14,720

Finance costs 8 (17,518) (14,816)

Finance income _ _ 9 33 88

" Net finance cost (17,485) (14,728)
Loss before taxation ' (7,123) 8)

. Income tax credit/{expense) ) 10 136 (967)

Loss for the financlal year (6,987) (975)

The group's activities are all derived from continuing operations.

The group has no other comprehensive income/expense. Total comprehensive expense for the year Is equal to the
loss for the finandial year.
The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of the financial statements.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2020
Note 2020 2019
£'000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
intangible assets 11 135,794 138,226
Property, plant and equipment 12 3,293 1,105
._Deferred tax assets . 20 74 131
139,161 139,462
Current assets ; .
Trade and other receivables 14 35,684 19,404
Cash and cash equivalents 15 427,450 19,023
' 83,134 38,427
" Total Assets ‘ 222,295 177,889
Uabllitles
Current liabllitles .
Trade and other payables 16 101,558 43,991
Current tax liabilities 16 - 763
Borrowings 19 4425 -
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 18 929 1,012
Lease liablilities 17 610 -
107,522 45,766
Total assets less current liabliities 114,773 132,123
Non-current liabllities
Trade and other payables 16 - 298
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 18 675 632
Borrowings . 19 157,392 169,392
Deferred tax liabilities 20 1,276 1,596
Lease liabilities 17 2,212 -
161,555 171,918
Total Liabilitles . 269,077 217,684
Equity
Share capital 22 72 72
Share premium q 4
Capital redemption reserve St 51
Accumulated losses (46,909) (39,922)
'Total shareholders' deficit (46,782) (39,795)
Total capital employed 222,295 177,889

The finandal statements were approved by the board of directors on 26 February 2021,
Signed on ‘ehalf of the board of directors *

W J Catterick
Director
Company registration number: 09199221

The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of the financial statements.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - COMPANY BALANCE SHE

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2020 .
Note 2020 2019
£000 £000
Fixed assets
. Investments 13 700 700
C - 700 700 .
Current assets
Trade and other receivables _ 14 . 127 127
Net assets 827 827
Equity
Share capital 21 72 72
Share premium q 4
Capital redemption reserve 51 S1
Capital contribution reserve 700 700
_Totalequity _ 827 827
The company, Optionis Limited, made neither a profit nor a loss during the year (2019: £nil).
W J Catterick
Director
Company registration number: 09199221
The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of the financial statements.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2020

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Share Capital Accumulated Total equity
capital premium redemption losses  attributable
reserve to owners
£'000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 November 2018 72 4 S1 (38,947) (38,820)
Loss and total comprehensive : ) X (975) (975)
expense
Balance at 31 October 2019 ] 72 4 51 (39,922) (39,'7.9'5) _
Loss and total comprehensive i
expense ' (6,987) (6,987)
Balance at 31 October 2020 72 4 51 (46,909) (46,782)
Company statement of changes in equity
Share Share Capital Retained Total equity
capital premium redemption earnings attributable
reserve to owners
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 November 2018 72 4 S1 700 827
_Balance at 31 October 2019 72 4 51 700 827
Balance at 31 October 2020 12 4 51 700 827

Amounts recognised in the ‘Capital redemption reserve’ relate to amounts in respect of the redemption of certain
of the Company’s ordinary shares and a repurchase of share capital in previous periods.

The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of the financial statements.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2020

2020 2019
£'0600 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year {6,987) (975)
Adjustments for:
Dep'reaat«on of property, plant and 6 1,008 476
equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 2,678 2,801
Impairment of fixed assets 6 238 =
Finance income 9 (33) (88)
Finance costs 8 17,518 14,816
Loss on disposal of property, plant and 6 a9 51
equipment
Other operating costs — exceptional 6 - 156
Taxation 10 (136) 967
(Increase) In debtors (15,860) (34)
Increase In creditors 47,926 86
" Cash generated from operations 46,401 18,256
Tax paid (1,310) (856)
Net cash generated from operating activities 45,091 17,400
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (390) (297)
Purchase of Intangible assets 1 (246) (498)
Management restructure , 6 - {156)
Interest received 9 33 88
. Net cash outflow from investing activities (603} (863)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 4,425 -
Repayment of borrowings (12,000) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (855) -
Interest paid (7,631) (15,242}
Net cash outfiow from finanding activities {(16,061) (15,242)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 28,427 1,295
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the 19023 17,728
_year
_Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 47,450 19,023
Comprised of: .
Cash at bank and in hand 47,450 19,023
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 47,450 19,023

The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of the financlal statements.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information
Group

The ‘group’, headed by Optionis Limited, is a provider of contractors to customers and is a specialist provider of fixed
fee, limited company accountancy and tax services primarily to contractors and freelancers. ‘The group’ operates in

- the UK under the trading brands of Parasol, SID Accountancy, Nixon Williams, Clearsky Contractor Accounting, Brian
Alfred Associates, Arnsco, First Freelance and First Umbrella. The objective of the ‘group’ is to continue its growth
by being the pre-eminent national provider of contractors to customers and of accountancy and tax services to
contractors.

A list of subsidiaries and their countries of incorporation is presented in note 13.
Company

Optionis Limited (the ‘Company’) {formerly Optionis Holdco Limited) is @ Company incorporated and domiciled in
England, and the address of the registered office is KD Tower, Cotterells, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire, HP1 1FW.
The Company and its subsidiaries together form the ‘group’.

The principal activity of the company during the year was to act as a holding company for the ‘group’. The ‘group’ Is
a provider of accountancy, tax and payroll services primarily to contractors and freelancers.

The Company does not have a parent undertaking and, in the opinion of the directors, there is no ultimate controlling
party of the group or company.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable law and international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value as set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

The parent company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companles Act 2006 and has not included its own
Profit and Loss Account in these financial statements. The parent company's result for the financial year was £nil
(2019: £NIl).

Basis of consolidation

The consofidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Optionis Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiaries are entities over which the group has control.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the group obtains control and cease to be consolidated from the date on which
the Group no longer retains control. Details of all the subsidiaries of the group are given in note 13.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Going concern

The group and company regularly review market and financial forecasts and has reviewed its trading prospects in its
key markets. As a result, it believes its trading performance will demonstrate improvement in the coming years, and
that liquidity will remain strong. Therefore, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group and company
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The board has reviewed the latest forecasts of the group and considered the obligations of the group's financing
arrangements, the group continues to operate well within its existing facilities and there are no concerns at this time
in relation to the group's ability to meet its quarterly covenants. Given the continued strong liquidity of the group,
the board has conduded that a going concern basls of preparation of its consolidated financial statements is
appropriate.

These forecasts have been prepared taking account of the current and potential impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic
and the IR35 reforms may have on the recruitment market volatility. As part of this review the directors’ consldered
specific assumptions and risks to achieving forecast outcomes and have considered liquidity as wefl as the abllity to
operate within the group’s current financing facllities which are subject to covenant tests. The forecasts also took
into account the substantial growth being seen during early 2021 in the Umbrella CGU which directly impacts both
profitability but also the groups liquidity position favourably. During the current year the group met all covenant
tests and based on the forecast will do so throughout the review period through to February 2022.

The group has also undertaken reverse stress tests of the forecasts assessing what deviation from budget would be
required in both clients numbers and Umbrelia working capital at each test date for the group to breach its covenants
tests. Based on the current performance and trends in the busines it would require a significant deviation for there
to be a breach.

New standards, amendments and interpretations for the Optionis Limited group

The group applied the IFRS 16 Leases standard following its mandatory adoption for the first time in the annual
reporting period commencing 01 November 2019.

The adoption of this standard has materially impacted the group Consolidated Financial Statements.
Note 23 provides further details.
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the reporting
period ended 31 October 2020 and have not been early adopted by the group:

¢ amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, and IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors’ definition of material; and
e amendments to the conceptual framework.

There are no other IFRSs, Annual improvements or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
deciston-maker. The chief operating decision-makers (CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been Identified as the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the group. The CODM reviews the key profit measure, 'EBITDA pre-exceptional costs'.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Management choose the cost basis under 1AS 16 'Property, plant and equipment’, rather than to apply the
alternative (revaluation) treatment to all items of property, plant and equipment as its ongoing accounting policy.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly attributable costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost or initially accounted for at fair value if acquired as part of a business
combination. Asset lives are re-assessed each year end. Where the expectations differ from previous estimates, the
changes have been accounted for prospectively as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8
‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’. .

Depreciation is provided on the cost of all other assets (except assets in the course of construction), so as to write
off the cost, less residual value, on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic life of the assets

concerned, as follows:

. Long term leasehold properties Period of lease
o Fixtures, fittings and affice equipment 10 years
. Computer and display equipment 3-Syears

Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date and revised where expectations are
significantly different from previous estimates. In such cases, the depreciation charge for current and future years
is adjusted accordingly.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidlaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured at fair value is less than the
falr value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, 3 gain on bargain purchase arises, this is recognised directly in
the income statement.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impalrment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed,
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OPTIONIS LIMITED ~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

intanglble assets
Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of Identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

itis technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate prabable future economic benefits;
adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available; and .

e the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not
meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset In a subsequent year.

Other intangible assets

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense
as incurred.

Other Intangible assets that are acquired by the group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of intangible asset acquired in a business combination are capitalised separately from goodwill if the fair
value can be measured reliably at the acquisition date.

‘Amortisation

Amortisation Is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets. Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are avallable for use. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

o Computer Software 3years
° Brands 10 years
L Customer Lists 2-10years

The basis for choosing these useful lives are:

e brand longevity considering brand history and market awareness; and
e Customer lists was based on the average customer life per data obtained for valuation work performed.

The group reviews the amortisation period and method when events and circumstances indicate that the useful life
may have changed since the last reporting date.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED ~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)
impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets such as investments, brands and non-contractual customer relationships are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent
cash inflows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed
for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Leases

Where the Company is a lessee, a right-of-use asset and lease liability are both recognised at the outset of the lease.
Each lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payment obligations taking
account of the likelihood of lease extenston or break options being exercised. Each lease liabllity is subsequently
adjusted to reflect imputed interest, payments made to the lessor and any modifications to the lease. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the amount of the lease liabllity, plus lease payments made
at or before the commencement date adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments, less any
incentives received to enter in to the lease, plus any initial direct costs incurred by the group to execute the lease,
plus an estimate of any costs expected to be incurred at the end of the lease to dismantle or restore the asset, and
less any onerous lease provision. The right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the group’s accounting
policy on property, plant and equipment. The amount charged to the income statement comprises the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and the imputed interest on the lease liability.

For the prior year comparatives, Leases were accounted for under tAS 17, Leases In which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were retained by the lessor were classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Investments

The consolldated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the group {its subsidiaries). Contro} is achieved where the group has the
power to affect the amount of return achieved from the investee.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in total comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate using accounting policies
consistent with those of the parent. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in
full on consotidation.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the company financlal statements.

Entities in which the group holds an interest, and which are jointly controlled by the group and one or more other
venturers under a contractual arrangement are treated as joint ventures. in the group financial statements, joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)
Exceptional items

items which are significant by virtue of their size or nature which are considered non-recurring are classified as
exceptional items. Such items, which include professional and legal costs in respect of business restructuring, COVID-
19 and refinancing are included within exceptional items. Exceptional items are excluded from underlying profit
measures used by the board to monitor and measure the underlying performance of the group and are presented
separately within the notes to the accounts (see note 4).

Financial asséts
Classification

The group’s financial assets comprise of cash and trade recelivables. Each of these items are recognised at amortised
cost in accordance with IFRS 9. A financial asset should be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a3 business
mode! whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assets which are held to collect contractual cash flows as well as selling the assets are recognised at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Assets which do not fit the other categories are recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. The group does not have such assets within the business and therefore all assets have been
recognised at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.

Yrade and other receivables

Trade and other recelvables are amounts due from customers, agencies or other parties for services performed in
the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9. The impairment model introduced in
IFRS 9 requires the recognition of impairment provisions to trade recelvables based on expected credit losses rather
than incurred credit losses as was the case under IAS 39. These impairment provisions have been determined to
initially be fully provided for once the aged debt has reached 60+ days. An assessment of recoverability is then
performed. This is because the majority of customers pay by direct debit and therefore due to the nature of these
types of payment, the credit risk Increases once the account is two months in arrears. The group has therefore
adopted the prudent approach of fully providing for these In line with IFRS 9. The simplified approach has adopted
in the calculation of the provisions.

Trade and other receivables also include contract assets which primarily arise where services have been provided
but the amount incurred and margin earned has yet to be invoiced to the client due to timing of the completion of
the performance obligation and are considered contract assets for disclosures required under IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated and company balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, ather short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial liabilities

The classification and measurement of financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, bank foans, loans from
fellow group companies and preference shares that are classified as debt, are classified as financial liablilities
recognised at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting poficies (continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current llabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently méasured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs incurred. All other costs
are expensed as incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the fair
value initially recognised and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. The effective interest method takes into account estimations of
future cash flows associated with the instrument. Management are required to re-assess these estimates at each
reporting date and where the expectations of the nature and timing of cash flows change a one-off adjustment is
required to alter the carrying value of the instrument in accordance with those new expectations.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date in which case they are classified as non-current.

Interest on borrowings is treated as an expense in the income statement, with the exception of interest costs
incurred on the financing of major projects, which are capitalised within property, plant and equipment.

Employee benefits

For defined contribution plans, the group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on 2 mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment obfigations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

The group aperates a number of equity-settied, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the group. The fair value of the
employee services received In exchanged for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time Is recognised as Interest expense.



OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue

IFRS 15, the Revenue standard for revenue recognition establishes principles for reporting useful information to
users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from an entity’s contracts with customers. It has been noted that there are the following performance obligations
for each revenue stream:

Accountancy

The accountancy services segment of the group provides a fully comprehensive accountancy service to small
businesses and contractors. These services earn revenue based on a monthly fixed fee cost which is bllled on a
monthly basis. Year-end accounts preparation naturally requires more time, however the business mode! of the
group Is to provide a fixed-fee service. In addition to this, resources provided to service the customer contracts are
required at equal levels throughout the year.

As accountancy services are intertwined with one another, it is deemed that these are not separately identifiable
and therefore there is one performance obligation, which is to perform the entire service for each client. The services
provided take place evenly over an annual cycle. Therefore, revenue is recognised evenly over a period of a year and
is over a period of time.

Umbrella

Revenue for the Umbrella business is recognised at a point in time when the related work has been performed by
the contractor and the performance obligation has been satisfied. Optionis provides a range of umbrella services to
contractors. The contractor will complete an assignment for an agency, who will then pay Optionis the agreed
contract rate (after deducting their fee). The performance obligation is deemed to be when the work has been
completed by the contactor.

Tax

Optionis provides a CIS tax return service to contractors, Optionis calculate and file the CIS return to HMRC on behalf
of the customer. It is at the point where the CIS return has been filed with HMRC that the performance obligation
has been met and the revenue is recognised.

There is no varlable conslderation in all revenue streams.
Grants

Grants are credited to the Statement of comprehensive income in the period to which they relate and recognised as
a reduction in administration expenses.

Referral Fees

Amount payable to agencies as a referral fee for new clients are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which the fee is incurred. They are recognised as an operating expenses.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED ~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. in this case, the
tax Is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. The current income tax
charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. it establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabllities are not recognised If they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in 3 transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred
Income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlied by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares
or options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Company

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 — 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland’ {'FRS 102'), and with the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis as modified by the recognition of certain financlal assets and liabilities measured
at fair value.

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disdosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions, which have been
complied with, including notification of, and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the Company’s shareholders.

The individual company accounts of Optionis Limited have also adopted the foflowing disclosure exemptions which
are made within the consolidated statements of Optionis Limited:

categories of financial instruments;

key management personnel disclosure;

items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments;
exposure to and management of financial risks; and

the requirement to present a statement of cash flows and related notes.

® 6 & o o
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OPTIONIS LIMITED —NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Critical accounting judgements and estimates
Group

The preparation of consolidated financial information requires the group to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are considered to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabllities are:

Significant estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by management on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected. The areas involving significant risk
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
as follows.

Revenue recognition

The group acts as a principal in arrangements when invoicing on behalf of its contractors (who are engaged by the
company on permanent employment contracts) to recruitment agencies. As the employment and other risks are
borne by the group in holding the contractors as its employees the company is considered to be a principal in the
arrangement in line with IFRS 15. Accordingly, turnover represents the amount invoiced and coflected from
recruitment agencies for fulfilling assignments at their end clients using employees of the group, including
arrangements where no commission Is directly receivable by the group. If the group were considered to be acting as
an agent, revenue would represent commission recelivable relating to supply of temporary workers and would not
include remuneration costs of the temporary workers. Whilst the different treatment would impact the quantum of
revenue and contractor employee costs it would have no effect on the reported earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, loss on disposal and exceptional expenses (Adjusted EBITDA) of the group.

There are also performance obligations to be recognised across each revenue stream as follows:

Accountancy

As accountancy services are intertwined with one another, it is deemed that these are not separately identifiable
and therefore there is one perfarmance obligation, which is to perform the entire service for each dient.

Tox

The performance obligation related to this service is the transfer of the rebate to the customer. Due to the fact that
the rebateis sent to the customer ahead of receiving the funds from HVIRC based upon an initial assessment of what
is likely to be recelved, the obligation Is not the completion of the tax return as the money is sent before this is
completed (although submission of the return and payment to the supplier largely occur simultaneously).

Umbrello

Optionis provides a range of umbrella services to contractors. The contractor will complete an assignment for an
agency, who will then pay Optionis the agreed contract rate (after deducting their fee). The performance obligation
is deemed to be when the work has been completed by the contactor.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Critical accounting judgements and estimates {continued)
impairment of goodwill, brands and customer lists

Goodwitl acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each cash generating unit
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The group Is required to test annually, or as triggering events occur, whether the goodwill, brands or technology are
subject to impairment. The recoverable amount Is determined based on value in use calculations. The use of this
method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the cholce of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of these cash flows. Further detalls of key assumptions made as part of this annual review is
provided in note 11.

Company

No critical accounting judgements and estimates have been made in the preparation of the Company financial
statements.

4. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers. The chief operating decision-makers (CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, have been identified as the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the group. The CODM reviews the key profit measure, ‘adjusted EBITDA pre-exceptional items'.
Following the acquisition of Optionis Midco Limited group in December 2016, Information presented for review by
the CODM has been disaggregated by service range, with operating segments identified as Accountancy Services,
Umbrella Contracting Services, Tax Services and overheads. The key group performance measure is adjusted EBITDA
pre-exceptional items, as detailed below, which is profit before net finance cost, tax, exceptional items, depreciation
and amortisation and other non-underlying items.

Year ended 31 October 2020

Umbrella
Accountancy Contracting Tax Other Total
services X Services
services
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total revenues 32,420 402,815 626 - 435,861
Revenue less costs of employee contractors 32,420 8,870 626 - 41,916
Operating profit 19,496 1,039 390 (10,563) " 10,362
Add back:
Depreciation 601 231 2 174 1,008
Amortisation 1,578 992 - 108 2,678
Impairment 238 - - - 238
_ Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and @) 56 i ) a8
equipment
Adjusted EBITDA 21,905 2,318 392 (10,281) 14,334
Add back costs regarded as non-underlying:
Exceptional costs (i) 137 993 - 940 2,070
Adjusted EBITDA pre-exceptional costs ' 22,042 3,311 392 (9,341) 16,404



OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4. Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Exceptional costs

Exceptional costs relate to additional costs associated with supporting furlough for umbrella employees (£852k),
restructuring of the management team (£429k}, office closures (£291k) and other items (£499k). These costs are
considered a non-underlying exceptional cost as they are regarded as non-trading and non-recurring.

Year ended 31 October 2019
Umbrella
Accoun:’a':g Contracting ServuT::sx Other Total
se services
£0600 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Total revenues 38,121 287,788 840 - 326,749
Revenue less costs of employee contractors 38,121 7,746 840 . 46,707
Operating profit : 23,245 24 590 (9,139) 14,720 .
Add back: '
Depreciation 268 131 2 75 476
Amortisation 1,713 1,073 3 11 2,801
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ) 51 ) _ 51
equipment
Adjusted EBITDA ) " 25,226 1,280 595 (9,053) 18,048
Add back costs regarded os non-underlying:
Exceptional costs - ) - - 156 156
1L_280 595 (8,897) 18,204

Adjusted EBITDA pre-exceptional costs ) 25,226

(i) Exceptional costs

Exceptional costs relating to restructure of the management team during the period. These costs are considered a
non-underlying exceptional cost as they are regarded as non-trading and non-recurring.

5. Revenue spiit
By product/service

Rendering of services
Total

By product category
Accountancy services

Tax services

Umbrella contracting services
Total

2020 . 2019
£'000 £'000
435,861 326,749
435,861 326,749
32,420 38,121
626 840
402,815 287,788
435,861 326,749

Information regarding geographical areas Is not presented as revenue for the group and is all derived within the

United Kingdom.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Expenses by nature

Operating profit is stated after charging:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Depreciation (note 12) 1,008 476
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 11) 2,678 2,801
Impairment of tangible assets 238 -
Operating lease expense - 944
Loss on disposal of PPE 48 51
Cost of employee contractors (note 7) ) 393,945 280,042
Employee benefit expenses (note 7) 17,094 17,882
Exceptional costs 2,070 156
Other expenses 8,418 9,677
425,499 312,029
Auditor’s remuneration:
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's annual accounts 65 50
Fees payable to the company's auditors and its assaciates for other services:
Audit of the accounts of subsidiaries 104 ‘96
Audit related assurance services - 9
Tax compliance services 65 76
Other accountancy and assurance services 26 60
261 291

Other expenses include the overheads related to running the offices, IT costs, HR costs and referral fees payable to

agencdles. :

Employee benefit expenses above are stated net of furlough claims of £537k. Costs of employee contractors are

stated net of furlough claims of £3,628k.
7. Employees and directors

Staff costs for the group during the year:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 15,156 15,974
Social security costs 1,555 1,541
Other pension costs 383 367
17,094 17,882
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

7. Employee and directors (continued)

In addition, the Group had contracted out employees during the year whose costs were as follows:

2020 2019 .
" £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 346,377 244,191
Social security costs 40,197 28,649
Pension costs-defined contribution plans 2,964 1,392
Expenses ... 8407 . 5,810
393,945 280,042
Average monthly number of people (including executive directors) employed:
2020 2019 -
Operations o 378 ) 430
Administration staff 174 174
Contracted out 7,576 6,536
8,128 7,140

The key management of the group comprise the directors. Further disclosure of the amounts pald to key
management is included within note 25.

Directors Emoluments

Remuneration in respect of directors was as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Short-term employment benefits 880 642
Other pension costs 5 -
885 642

In addition, compensation for loss of office of £150,962 was paid to two directors (2019: £Nil).

Directors’ emoluments were pald by Optionis Group Limited. No recharges were made to the company for the
directors’ services and the directors do not believe It possible to apportion their remuneration between the
companies.

The highest paid director received remuneration of £315,361 (2019: £237,557). The group considers key
management to be the directors of the business; see note 25 for further details.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Finance costs

Interest payable on secured borrowings (i)
Interest payable on loan notes (ii)
Amortisation of loan arrangement costs
Other finance costs

Lease interest payable

Other interest payable

Total interest payable and similar charges

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
8,969 9,317
7,452 4,939
. 318

6” -
m -
181 242
17,518 14,816

(i} The secured bank borrowings are secured by means of 3 fixed and floating charge over the assets of the group.

The group has a loan with Alcentra UK DLF S.A.R.L. of £108,000,000 (2019: £120,000,000). The balance on this foan '
is repayable in full in December 2023. The interest rate on the loan is UBOR, at a minimum of 0.75%, + 7% and settled

quarterly.

(i} The loan notes relate to £34,319,658 (2019: £34,319,658) due to shareholders and £15,000,000 (2019:
£15,000,000) due to vendors. All loan notes are repayable in full in September 2022. The interest rate on the foan
notes is fixed at 10% and was settled quarterly until year end. In accordance with existing options within the loan
note agreements, Interest is no longer being paid but is being accrued on these loan notes.

9, Finance income

Bank interest receivable

10. Taxation
Analysis of income tax charge:

Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax
Deferred tax on profits for the year
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total deferred tax (note 209)

Income tax (credit)/expense

FUTITN T N Avnews s SIRSevTITe b L 7 a7 emeotE e sthmplt - .-

2020 2019 -
£'000 £'000
33 88
33 88
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
217 1,370
{91) (127)
126 1,253
(262) (286)
(262) (286)
(136) 967

=t
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The effective tax assessed for the year Is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.0% (2019:
19.0%). The differences are explained below:

2020 2019

£000 £'000
(Loss) on ordinary activities before tax {7,123) (8)
(Loss) before corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2019: 19.00%) (1,353) (2)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,171 1,036
Adjustments in respect of prior years (91) (117)
Movements on deferred tax not recognised 137 50
Total taxation (credit)/expense . {136) 967

The Finance (No.2) Act 2015 introduced a reduction in the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1
April 2017 and from 19% to 18% from 1 April 2020. These reductions were substantively enacted on 26 October
2015. The Finance Act 2016 introduced a further reduction in the main rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1 April
2020. This was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016. _
A budget resolution to cancel the reduction in the main rate from 19% to 17% was given statutory effect under the
Provisional Collection of Taxes Act 1968 and substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. Accordingly, deferred tax
balances are valued at 19%.

11.  Intangible assets

31 October 2020
Goodwill Brand Customerlists Computer Total
Software
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Cost
At 1 November 2018 165,255 1,842 14,633 647 182,377
Additions - - ) - 498 498
At 31 October 2019 165,255 1,842 14,633 1,145 182,875
Additions - - . 246 246
At 31 October 2020 165,255 1,842 14,633 1,391 1§3,121
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 November 2018 36,973 337 4,180 358 41,848
Charge for the year - 184 2,389 228 2,801
At 31 October 2019 36,973 521 6,569 586 44,649
Charge for the year - 184 2,292 202 2,678
At 31 October 2020 36,973 705 8,861 788 47,327
Net book value
At 31 October 2020 . 128,282 1,137 5,772 . 603 135,794
At 31 October 2019 . 128,282 1,321 8,064 559 138,226
At 31 October 2018 128,282 1,505 10,453 289 140,529
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

11, Intangible assets [continued)
The amortisation Is recognised wholly within the depreciation and amortisation income statement line item.

The brand and customer lists categories are intangible assets that were recognised on the purchase of First Freelance
Limited and First Umbrella Limited being the customer lists of the companies and with Optionis Midco Limited
(previously Optionis Holdco Limited) being the brand and customer lists of Parasol and Clearsky Contractor
Accounting. As at 31 October 2020, First Umbrella customer list had a remaining useful economic life of 7 years
{2019: 8 years). The First Freelance Limited customer list has been fully amortised (2019: 0.5 years). The Parasol
brand and customer list had a remaining useful economic life of 7 (2019: 8) and 7 (2019: 8) years, respectively. The
Clearsky Contractor accounting brand and customer list had a remaining useful economic life of 7 (2019: 8) and 0
(2019: 1) years respectively.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill Is monitored by management based on the categories set out below. A summary of CGUs and allocation
of goodwill held by the group is presented below:

2020 2019
Goodwill by CGU £'000 £'000
Accountancy services 117,935 117,935
Umbrella contracting services 10,347 10,347
Total 128,282 128,282

The recoverable amount of the Accountancy and Umbrella CGUs has been determined based on the value in use
calculation. The calculation of the value in use is based on projected cash flows for each of the CGU’s for three years
and into perpetuity. These future cash flows have been discounted at the WACC rate, which has been determined
to be 8.27% (2019: 8.27%)

The key element of Judgement is the forecasting of the net client numbers in each of the CGU over the 3 year
review period. The major assumptions are as follows:

Accountancy Umbrella

Growth in client numbers ' 32% 81%

If growth In client numbers, were to fall to the below rates, the carrying amount and recoverable amount would be
equal.

Accountancy Umbrella

Reduction In client numbers (21%) (55%)
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Property, plant and equipment

31 October 2020
Long term leasehold Fixtures fittings and
properties office equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 November 2018 1,031 1,239 2,270
Additions 3 266 297
Disposals - (51) (51)
At 31 October 2019 i . 1,062 1,454 2,516
Additions 2 388 390
Disposals . {92) (102) {194)
At 31 October 2020 972 1,740 2,712
Depreclation and Impalrment
At 1 November 2018 339 596 935
Charge for the year 96 380 476
At 31 October 2019 435 976 1,411
Charge for the year 96 306 " 402
Disposals . {71) (45) (116)
" At 31 October 2020 460 1,237 1,697
Net book amount
At 31 October 2020 512 502 1,015
At 31 October 2019 627 478 1,105
At 31 October 2018 692 643 1,335
There are no assets which are used as security.
Right-of-use assets - Group Long term leasehold
properties Total
£'000 £'000
Cost
At 31 October 2019 . - -
Recognition of right-of-use assets 3,122 3,122
Right-of-use assets recognised at 01 November 2019 3,122 3,122
Additions - -
At 31 October 2020 3,122 3,122
Depreciation and impairment
At 01 November 2019 - -
Charge for the year (606) {606)
Impairment charges {238) . . {238)
At 31 October 2020 (844) (844)
Net book value
At 31 October 2020 2,278 2,278
_At 01 November 2019 3,122 3,122
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. Investments

Shares In group
undertakings
. £'000
As at 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2020 . 700

Investments comprise equity shares in Optionis Group Limited which are not publicly traded. During the year the
company received dividends of £nil (2019: £nll) from Optionis Group Limited.

Investments in subsidiaries
At 31 October 2020 the group and the company had interests in the following subsidiaries:

Entity Principal Country of

activity incorporation Proportion held (%)
Direct Holding ) ) .
Optionis Group Limited Administrative services England & Wales 100%
Indirect Holding
SJD Accountancy Limited Accountancy and tax services England & Wales 100%
Nixan Williams Limited Accountancy and tax services England & Wales 100%
Arkarlus Bldco Umited g'otf:;f‘:]m Holding England & Wales 100%
Arkarius Midco Limited 'C:'::‘a:'m Holding England & Wales 100%
Qearsky Contractor Accounting Limited Accountancy and tax services England & Wales 100%
Optionis Midco Limited Intermediate holding co England & Wales 100%
Optionis Bidco Umited Intermediate ho!ding co England & Wales 100%
Optionis Management Limited Administrative services England & Wales 100%
Parasol Limited Consultancy services England & Wales 100%
Clearsky Accountancy and Payroll Limited Professional Services Engfand & Wales 100%
Brian Affred Assoclates Limited Tax services England & Wales 100%
Arnsco Limited Tax services England & Wales 100%
Arc Licensed Trade Consultancy Limited Accountancy and tax services  England & Wales 100%
Silverline Performance Umited Dormant England & Wales 100%
Wheatley Pearce Limited Dormant England & Wales 100%
First Freelance Limited Accountancy and tax services England & Wales 100%
First Umbrella Limited Consultancy services England & Wales 100%

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidated financial statements. The proportion of the voting rights
in the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the Company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares
held. The Company does not have any shareholdings in the preference shares of subsidiary undertakings included in

the group.

The registered office of all the above subsidiary companies is Optionis House, 840 Ibis Court, Centre Park,
Warrington, Cheshire, WA1 1RL with the exception of Optionis Group Limited, SID Accountancy Limited, First
Freelance Limited, First Umbrella Limited, Arkarius Bidco Limited and Arkarius Midco Limited whose registered office
Is the same as Optlonis Limited and Nixon Williams Limited whose registered office is 4 Calder Court, Amy Johnson
Way, Blackpool, Lancashire, FY4 2RH.

The group agrees to guarantee the liabilities of Optionis Midco Limited, Silverline Performance Limited, ARC Licenced
Trade Consultancy Limited, Optionis Management Limited, Optionis Bidco Limited, Brian Aifred Assoclates Limited,
Arnsco Limited, Wheatley Pearce Limited, Arkarius Midco Limited, Clearsky Accounting and Payroll Limited, First
Umbrella Limited and First Freelance Limited thereby allowing them to take an exemption from having an audit
under section 479A of Companies Act 2006.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Trade and other recelvables
Group 2020 2019
£'000 "~ £'000
Trade debtors 30,914 17,118
Provision for impairment of receivables o {74) . (135) .
Net trade receivables 30,840 16,983
Prepayments and accrued income 1,278 1,392
Other receivables 3,145 1,029
Corporation tax 421 -
Total trade and other receivables 35684 19,404
The ageing of trade recelvables at the balance sheet date was:
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Not past due 29,915 16,522
Past due 0 - 30 days 450 418
Past due 31 - 60 days 102 72
More than 60 days 447 . . 106
30,914 . ..17,118
Company
Amounts owed by group undertakings e . 127 . 127
Total trade and other recelvables 127 i _127

There are no material differences between the fair values and book values stated above.

The group had an allowance for expected credit losses of £74,000 (2019: £135,000). Expected credit loss has been
determined as balances over two months due separately identified from those on payment terms. There is minimum
exposure to credit losses, due to balances owing for accountancy clients being largely collectable by direct debit.
Amounts owing from agencies are received prior to paying the contractors, in the event of non-payment, the group
is only liable for minimum wage.

Amounts owed by group undertakings are interest free and repayable on demand.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2018
£'000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 47,450 19,023
Cash and cash equivalents " 47,450 19,023
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:
Cash at bank and in hand 47,450 ..19,023
Cash and cash equivalents - 47,450 19,023
16. Trade and othgr payables
2020 2019
£000 £'000
Trade payables 952 861
Corporation tax - 763
Other tax and social security payable 28,833 22,085
Accruals and other payables 71,773 21,045
101,558 44,754
Non-current
Other creditors - 298
' . 101,558 45,052

There are no material differences between the fair values and book values stated above.

Accruals and other payable relate to VAT payable and amounts owing to contracted out employees for work

completed during the period.

17 Lease liabilities
Group Long term leasehold properties Total
X £'000 £000
At 31 October 2019 T -
Recognition of lease liability under iFRS 16 3,411 3,411
Opening lease liabllities fgqognised at 01 November 2019 _ ) 3,411 3411
Lease liability payments (855} (855)
Finance costs 266 266
At 31 October 2020 2,822 2,822
Lease liabilities are comprised of the following balance sheet amounts:
31 October 2020 31 October 2019
IFRS 16 1AS 17
£000 £'000
‘Amounts due within one year 610 -
Amounts due after more than one year 2,212 -
2,822 -
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. Lease liabilities (continued)
Lease liabilities are as follows:
31 October 2020 31 October 2019
IFRS 16 1AS 17
£000 £000
Not more than one year
Minimum lease payments 829 -
Interest element (229) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 610 -
Between one and five years
Minimum lease payments 2,595
interest element (383)
Present value of minimum lease payments 2,212
18. Provision for liabilities
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Ditapidation provision 555 632
Consultancy provision 616 567
Other provisions 433 445
" 1,604 1,644
Current 929 1,012
Non-current 675 632
1,604 1,644
Movement in dilapidations provision
2020 2019
. £000 £'000
Opening balance 632 668
Charged to income statement {77) -
Utllised - (36)
Closing balance 555 632

The dilapidations provision relates to the best estimate of future reparations costs in relation to leases occupied by
the group. The provision Is expected to be utilised in line with the cessation of each of the leases.

Movement in consultancy provision

Opening balance

Charge to income statement
Released

Utilised

Closing balance

2020 2019
£'000 " £'000
567 308
{125) (582)
164 941
10 (100)
616 567
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. Provision for liabilities (continued)

The group recognises a provision for consultancy costs that could be incurred but for which the contractual
obligations have not been fulfilled by the consuitant. Based on analysis performed the group have assessed this and
consider that the provision should cover unclaimed amounts for a period of six months based on the actual evidence
of the utilisation of this provision in previous years.

Movement in other provisions

2020 2019

£000 £000
Opening balance 445 454
Credit to income statement 121 -
Utilised ) (133) (9)
Closing balance ‘ . 433 T 445,

Within other provisions, the group recognises a provision for the risk of Professional iIndemnity claims arising from
current or former customers. The provision is measured based on trend analysis of historical claims raised against
companies in the group which the directors believe to be appropriate.

19. Borrowings

2020 2019

" £'000 £'000
Current
Bank loans 4,425 -
Non-current
Bank loans 108,000 120,000
Loan notes 49,392 49,392
Total non-current 157,392 169,392 i
Total borrowlings 161,817 169,392

(i) Bank loans
The secured bank borrowings are secured by means of a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the group.

The group has a loan with Alcentra UK DLF S.A.R.L. of £108,000,000 (2019: £120,000,000, 2018: £120,000,000). The
balance on this loan is repayable in full in December 2023. The interest rate on the loan is LIBOR, at 3 minimum of
0.75%, + 7% and settled quarterly.

{ii) Loan notes

The toan notes relate to £34,392,000 (2019: £34,392,000, 2018: £34,392,000) due to shareholders and £15,000,000
{2019: £15,000,000, 2018: £15,000,000) due to vendors. All loan notes are repayable in full in September 2022. The
interest rate on the loan notes is fixed at 10% and was settled quarterly until year-end where no payments have
been made since other than to S Dolan.
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20. Deferred tax

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as foflows:

Deferred tax asset expected to unwind after 1 year

Deferred tax liability expected to unwind within 1 year
Deferred tax liability expected to unwind after 1 year

The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

Brought forward balance

Credited to the income statement

Carried forward balance

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability

Net deferred tax liability at year-end

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
74 131
74 131
(480) (480)
(796) (1,116)
(1,276) (1,596)
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
(1,465) (1,751)
263 286
(1,202) (1,465) .
74 131
(1,276) (1,596)
(1,202) {1,465)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax Jurisdiction, Is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 November 2019
Charged to the income statement
At 31 October 2020

At 1 November 2018
Charged to the iIncome statement
At 31 October 2019

31 October 2020
Accelerated Total
Intangibles arising capital
on acquisition allowances
£'000 £'000 £'000
{1,596) - {1,596)
320 - 320
(1,276) - (1,276)
31 October 2019

Intangibles arising  Accelerated capital

on acquisition allowances Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
(2,033) - (2,033)
437 - 437
(1,596) - - (1,596)
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets
. . 33 October 2020 .
Accelerated Share Total
capital based Unused tax
allowances payment losses
£'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000
At 1 November 2019 131 - - 131
Charged to the income statement ‘ {57) - - (57)
At 31 October 2020 74 .- - ) 74
e ... 31 0October 2019 L .
Accelerated Share Total
capital based Unused tax
allowances payment losses
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 November 2018 162 - 120 282
Charged to the income statement _(31) - {120) (151)
At 31 October 2019 o 131 L - 131
21, Financial instruments ~ risk management
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
At 31 October 2020 2020 2019
£000 £'000
Trade Payables 952 861
Accruals and other payables 71,773 21,343
Secured borrowings 112,425 120,000
Lease liabilities 2,822 -
Loan notes 49,392 49,392
Total Uiabilitles measured at amortised 237,364 191,595
cost
Tax and social security payments . 23,333 22,848
Total Liablilitles 266,197 214,444

All financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21, Financial instruments - risk management (continued)

Credit Risk

The group may offer credit terms to its customers which allow payment of the debt after delivery of the goods or
services. The group Is at risk to the extent that a customer may be unable to pay the debt on the specified due date.
This risk Is mitigated by the strong on-going customer relationships and by the exposure over a large number of
customers rather than a significant concentration.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, credit sales and deposits with banks. Credit risk related to the use
of treasury instruments is managed on a group basls. This risk arises from transactions with banks, such as those
Involving cash and cash equivalents and deposits. To reduce the credit risk, the group has concentrated its main
activities with a group of banks that have secure credit ratings. For each bank, individual risk limits are set based on
its financial position, credit ratings, past experience and other factors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.

Management continually review specific balances for potential indicators of impairment. in the instance where an
Indicator is identified, management will determine overall recovery from a legal perspective and provide for any
Irrecoverable amounts. Under IFRS 9, the expected credit loss for trade receivables has been assessed as opposed
to only looking at an incurred loss. The conclusion in respect of this, is that the balance is deemed to be fully impaired
once the direct debit is past two months due —~this is because the majority of clients pay by direct debit and therefore
once an account is over two months past due it is noted as being irrecoverable.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (from date of past due) but not considered to be impaired is as
follows: .

2020 2019

£'000 £000
Not past due 8,266 5,165
Past due 0 — 30 days 450 418
Past due 31 - 60 days 102 72
More than 60 days ) 447 106
’ 9,265 5,761

The group had an allowance for expected credit losses of £74,000 (2019: £135,000). Expected credit loss has been
determined as balances over two months due separately identified from those on payment terms.

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
At start of the year 135 145
Provision for receivables impairment 82 © 292
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (143) (302)
At the end of the financial year 74 135
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. Financial instruments - risk management (continued)

Market Risk

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk, being currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk. The group's interest rate risk arises principally from the revolving credit facllity and secured
borrowings which attract interest with varying terms, see note 18. The group manages its interest rate risk by using
a mix of fixed and floating rate debt with varying repayment terms. The group also does not trade In derivative
instruments and so is not considered to be exposed to other price risk. The exposure to currency risk Is considered
below.

{nterest rate risk

A change of 0.5% in interest rates, over the duration of the financial year would have impacted the financial
statements as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Increase in Financlal loss (560) (600)
Decrease in equity (560) {600)

Currency risk

The group has negligible risk to currency fluctuations as the majority of assets and liabilities are held in the same
functional currency.

Liquidity Risk

The objective of the group in managing liquidity risk Is to ensure that it can meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. The group expects to meet Its financial obligations through operating cash flows. The group has
generated sufficient cash from operations to meet its working capital requirements. Cash flow forecasting is
performed in the operating entities of the group, the group monitors rolling forecasts of the group's liguidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. The table below detalls the maturity of the

graup's borrows:
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OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21, Financlal Instruments — risk management (continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial llabllities owed by the group:

Less than one Between one
year and five years Total
At 31 October 2020 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade Payables 952 - " 952
Accruals and other payables 71,773 - 71,773
Secured borrowings 4,425 108,000 112,425
Lease liabilities 830 2,598 3428
Loan notes - 49,392 49,392
Total 77,760 159,604 237,970 )
Less than one Between one
year and five years Total
At 31 October 2019 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 22,204 - 22,204
Secured borrowings 8,000 112,000 120,000
Loan notes - 49,392 49,392
Total 30,204 161,392 191,596

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ requires fair value measurements to be recognised using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in the measurements, according to the following levels:

tevel 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that Is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable’
inputs).

The directors consider the fair value of all of its short-term financial instruments is the same as their book value. In
respect of borrowings, the director's do not consider there has been a significant change in either credit risk or
applicable market rates since the debt was established, nor do they have evidence to suggest that the fair value of
borrowings would be significantly different from its carrying value. However due to the size and nature of the group's
debt, the fair value of the group's borrowings would be sensitive to any changes in interest rates.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED —~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21, Financial instruments (continued)

Capital Risk Management

The Directors consider the capital of the group to refate to share capital and group reserves and long-term
borrowings. The group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Directors carefuily monitor the group’s long-term borrowings
including the ability to service debt and long-term forecast covenant compliance. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares, or borrow additional debt.

The interest rates on each of the group’s major monetary assets and liabllities are managed to achieve the desired
mix of fixed and variable rates. Measurements of this interest rate risk and its potential volatility to the group's
reported financial performance Is undertaken on a monthly basis.

Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with defined risk appetite and any Interest rate risk conditions
impaired by lenders; ensuring optimal hedging strategies are applied, by either positioning the balance sheet or
protecting interest expense through varying interest rate cycles.

22.  share Capital

Number of
Ordinary
shares of 1p _ Share capital
£'000s
At 1 November 2019 and at 31 October 2020 . 7,203,608 72

23. °  Changes in Accounting Standards

Following the adoption in the year of IFRS 16 Leases, the following detalls its impact on the group’s Consolidated
Financial Statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

The group adopted IFRS 16 with effect from 01 November 2019. The group applied the standard using the modified
retrospective approach and thus comparative information has not been restated and is presented as previously
reported under IAS 17.

The new standard results in all property leases being recognised on the Statement of Financial Position as, from a
lessee perspective, there is no longer any distinction between operating and finance leases. Under IFRS 16, an asset,

based on the right to use a leased item over a long-term period, and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.

The only exceptions are short-term and low-value [eases.

Under IFRS 16, fessor accounting remains largely unchanged, with lessors continuing to account for leases as either
operating or finance leases, depending on whether the lease transfers substantially all the risk and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and whether the present value of the sublease payments amount
to at least substantially all of the fair value of the underlying asset. The group does not lease any assets as lessor.

The group leases properties, which under IAS 17 were classified as a series of operating lease contracts with
payments made charged to profit or loss as arising over the period of the lease. From 01 November 2019, under IFRS
16, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability from the date at which the leased
asset becomes available for use by the group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and a finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period using the effective interest method. The right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the determined lease term, which is the
shorter of the remaining lease term and first opportunity to break the lease, on a straight-line basis.
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OPTIONIS LIMITED - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

23, Changes In Accounting Standards {(continued)

in applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the

standard:

¢ indetermining whether existing contracts meet the definition of a lease, the group has not reassessed those
contracts previously identified as leases and has not applied the standard to those contracts not previously
identified as leases;

e short-term leases (leases of Jess than 12 months) and Jeases with less than 12 months remaining as at the
date of adoption of the new standard are not within the scope of IFRS 16;

o leases for which the asset is of low value (IT equipment and small items of office equipment) are not within
the scope of IFRS 16;

o the use of a single discount rate ta its portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases previously classified as ‘operating
leases’ under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. For all leases, these liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the group’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate as of 01
November 2019, which was 8.41%. This was deemed appropriate given that the group’s leases have reasonably
simifar characteristics. The rate was determined as the borrowing rate under the Loan Notes and Alcentra Loan, with
appropriate adjustments made to reflect the increased term and amount of borrowing required for a similar lease
portfolio, as well as changes to risk rating.

IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with the options to extend or
terminate a lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option. Where a lease includes the option for
the group to terminate a lease term early, the graup makes a3 judgement as to whether it is reasonably certain that
the lease termination option will be taken.

This predominantly takes into the account the length of time remaining before the option is exercisable, and how
likely it is that the option will be exercised. All of the group’s leases are below five years.

The associated right-of-use assets were measured using the approach set out in IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii), whereby right-of-
use assets are equal to the lease liabilities adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments,
including unamortised lease incentives such as rent-free periods, onerous lease provisions, and an estimate of the
dismantling, removal and restoration costs required under the terms of the.lease. Under IFRS 16, the right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. This replaces the previous
requirement to recognise a provision for onerous leases. An impairment assessment of the cash generating unit
(“CGU") assets was performed on transition at 01 November 2019 where it was deemed that there no initlal
impairment and so no adjustment to opening reserves.

in the consolidated cash flow statement, depredation of the right-of-use-asset is included in operating activities and
the repayment of lease liabilitles is included in financing activities whereas under IAS 17 operating lease rental
payments were included in operating activities. The impact on the consolidated cash flow statement is an increase
in cash inflow from operations of £0.8 million and a decrease in the cash outflow from financing activities of £0.8
million.

The effect of the accounting policy change on the consolidated statement of financial position at implementation on
01 November 2019 was:

At 31 October IFRS 16 At 01 November
2019 adjustments 2019
£'000 £000 £'000

Assets
Right-of-use assets - 3,122 3,122
Change in total assets - 3,122 3,122

63

T e g, © merm mm e Feeemmwr o RO 43 tImmw T ocu 4t ==

-



OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. Changes in Accounting Standards (continued)

At 31 October IFRS 16 At 01 November
2019 . adjustments 2019
Liabilities
Lease Liability - ) 3,411 3,411
Rent-free creditor 289 (289) . -
Change in total liabilities 289 ' 3,122 3,411

There was no adjustment to retained eamings upon transition.

Lease Liabllities

£'000
Amounts owing under operating leases at 01 November 2019 4,678
Service element included in obligations at 01 November 2019 (387)
Interest to be charged in financial statements in future periods (854)
Additions 43
Disposals (161)
Amendments to lease terms , e 92
Finance lease liabllity at 01 November 2019 3,411

24. Contingent liabilities

The group is from time to time involved in legal actions from third parties and enquiries from HMRC that are
incidental to its operations. The directors consider It Is unlikely that any liability will arise resulting from any current
unprovided legal action or HMRC enquiry that would significantly affect the financial position or profitability of the

group.
25. Related party transactions
Key management personnel compensation

All directors, who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the activities of the
company, are key management personnel. The remuneration in respect of these individuals for the year to 31
October 2020 was £885,249 (2019: £642,000).

Compensation typically includes salaries and other short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and
other long-term benefits.

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Short-term employment benefits 880 642
Other pension costs 3 -
) 885 642

In addition, compensation for loss of office of £150,962 was paid to two directors (2019: £Nil).



OPTIONIS LIMITED — NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. Related party transactloﬁs {continued)

Transactions with subsidiary companies and companies under common control

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed In this note. The transactions noted below are with the Directors of the Company

or with companies which are under the control of the Directors which are not consolidated:

Sales due to SJD Insolvency Limited

Balance due from SID Insolvency Limited

Loan notes balance due to Tower Pension Trustees Limited on behalf of J S
Newman's SIPP

Loan notes balance due to The Old Astwood Limited Pension Scheme
where K J Budge is a Trustee

Loan notes balance due to D Kelly

Loan notes balance due to | Ahmed

Loan notes balance due to $ Dolan

Loan notes balance due to Sovereign Capital

Accrued interest balance due to Tower Pension Trustees Limited on behalf
of J S Newman's SIPP

Accrued interest balance due to The Old Astwood Limited Pension Scheme
where K J Budge Is a Trustee

Accrued interest balance due to D Kelly

Accrued interest balance due to | Ahmed

Accrued interest balance due to S Dolan

Accrued interest balance due to Sovereign Capital

Loan note interest due to Tower Pension Trustees Limited on behalf of J S
Newman's SIPP

Loan note interest due to The Old Astwood Limited Pension Scheme where
K J Budge is a Trustee

Loan note interest due to D Kelly

Loan note interest due to | Ahmed

Loan note interest due to S Dolan

Payment to a famlly member of one of the directors

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
570 402
(190) (130)
105 105
617 617
6,226 6,226
328 328
15,000 15,000
27,116 27,116
11 3

62 16
624 157
33 8

- 378
2,719 683
- 8

- 46

- 466

- 25
1,504 -
- 43
54,725 51,497

All loan notes are repayable in full in September 2022. The interest rate on the loan notes is fixed at 10%.

26. Ultimate controlling party

The Company does not have an immediate parent undertaking, and, in the opinion of the Directors, there is no

ultimate controlling party of the group and company.
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